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RFP 8-13-C030 
Environmental Services  

for Real Estate Acquisition, 
Dulles Corridor Metrorail Project, Phase 2 

 
Questions and Answers 

 
December 20, 2013 

 

1. Question:  If we are currently certified as a LDBE with MWAA, do we also need to be qualified as a 
SBE per the RFP? 

Answer:  LDBE’s will qualify as SBE’s if they do not exceed the $22.41M size cap.  However, if 
selected, they will still have to submit the SBE Affidavit of Eligibility and three years of 
corporate tax returns. 

 
2. Question:   Is there a list of consultants that I can team up with. We are a small woman own minority 

business. Please help! We would like to be a sub-consultant. 

Answer:  No. However, you are welcome to review the planholder list on the MWAA Contracting 
website. 

 
3. Question:  If our company is participating on the design-build teams for the Phase 2 portion of the rail 

project (some have been awarded and we were on the winning team), are we allowed to  
pursue this RFP? 

Answer:  No. 

 
4. Question:  I’m seeing references to the time of performance, as noted in the scope, i.e. “offerors must 

perform the required services within the time specified in the solicitation”; however, I can 
only locate the period of performance of December 16, 2013 through December 15, 2015. 
Is this the completion period that must be addressed within the Contractor’s Management 
Plan that addresses proposed schedules? 

Answer:  The dates noted within your e-mail are the period of performance for the base contract. 
The Evaluation Criteria and Submittal Requirements have been clarified in Amendment 
03. 

 
5. Question:  Is the Pre-Proposal Conference Meeting mandatory? 

Answer:  The Pre-Proposal Conference Meeting, held on November 5, 2013, was not mandatory. 
However, registering as a planholder through the MWAA Contracting website will ensure 
you are notified of any amendments that may be issued in the future. 

 
6. Question:  Can you provide the addresses and tax parcel IDs for the properties to be investigated? 

Answer:   The Tax ID numbers and parcel locations are shown on the Preliminary Engineering plan 
sheets, which are available as described in the changes in Amendment 03 to the 
Statement of Work. 
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7. Question:  Will MWAA provide the Phase I ESA information listed in ASTM E1527-05, Section 6, 
User’s Responsibilities (i.e. environmental lien search and consideration of purchase 
price)? 

Answer:  No. This will be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

 
8. Question:  Will development of the quality assurance/quality control program and development of the 

project work plan be covered under project management and administration for the 
purposes of billing MWAA? 

Answer:  The Price Schedule has been revised in Amendment 03 and management and 
administration is now to be captured in the unit prices for the Environmental Due Diligence 
Reports. 

 
9. Question:  What are the “policies, guidelines, and processes established during Phase I of the Project 

to meet VDOT, FTA, and Project requirements” that must be adapted for Phase 2? 

Answer:  This language has been removed. See Amendment 03. 

 
10. Question: The second to last paragraph on page 4 of Attachment 01 states, “the approach shall 

include a cost estimate for performing the work.” Is this cost estimate to be the basis for 
billing or will the pricing included in our response be the basis for billing? 

Answer:  The Price Schedule shall be the basis for billing.  The Statement of Work has been 
clarified in Amendment 03. 

 
11. Question:  The RFP property acquisition priority list indicates 73 parcels. The pre-proposal 

presentation indicated that approx. 47 parcels required EA’s. The RFP Price Schedule 
indicates estimated hours for various base periods. What should we be pricing? Unit price 
or total number of parcels? If it is the total number of parcels, how many parcels and which 
ones are we pricing? Also, please associate each parcel with its respective Priority and 
tentative schedule for completion and Level(s) of Environmental Due Diligence. 

Answer:  The Statement of Work has been clarified regarding parcels that will need to be 
addressed. Please refer to the revised Price Schedule for the basis for pricing, which 
provides quantities to be assumed for each type of study. As noted within the revised 
Statement of Work of Amendment 03, “The CONSULTANT will review background 
materials and make recommendations to the Airports Authority with respect to the type of 
Environmental Due Diligence Reports to be performed for the specific site(s).  THE 
CONSULTANT shall review plans and drawings as necessary to understand the Project 
construction scope on the affected site, as needed, to support the preparation of the scope 
of the Environmental Due Diligence Reports, such as identifying the extent of impacts at-, 
above-, and, particularly, below-grade. 

 
12. Question:  We might need specialty subconsultants to do EA Phase II work. Do these specialty 

subconsultants need to be included with our proposal or can they be added later as 
needed? 

Answer: Yes. All participating subconsultants should be included within the proposal. 
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13. Question:  Regarding the Price Schedule, please clarify Line Item 2b “Updates to Environmental Site 
Assesments.” Does this refer to responding to MWAA’s comments on draft reports that we 
are to price in Line Item 2a “Environmental Site Assessments?” If this is not the correct 
interpretation of Line Item 2b, please explain Line Item 2b. 

Answer:  As clarified in Amendment 03 in the revised Statement of Work, “updates to Environmental 
Due Diligence Reports” refers to updates to previously finalized reports.  Revisions to draft 
reports are to be included in the unit price for the reports. The Airports Authority may 
request the Contractor to update ESA(s) for situations such as an elapse of the 180 day 
ASTM shelf life requirement, change in site condition/ownership, or change in construction 
impact on the subject property. Also, the Airports Authority may request updates to TSPs.  
Additional information on updates is included within Amendment 03. 

 
14. Question: Regarding the Price Schedule, we are concerned about the requirement that we provide a 

price to conduct and report a Phase II ESA. Because the requirement to perform a Phase 
II ESA, and the type of investigation, sampling requirements, and level of effort cannot be 
determined until the Phase I ESA is conducted, we are unable to price this Line Item. In 
order that all offerors can price this Line Item on an equal basis, please provide either 
sample Phase II ESA requirements (i.e., a sample problem), or a series of line items for 
which we will provide unit rates. 

Answer:   See Amendment 03, Revised Statement of Work, which indicates the Phase II 
assumptions for cost estimating purposes. 

 
16. Question:   On the "Price Schedule", second page under the "Notes" section, it states that "This Price 

Schedule must be submitted in both electronic and hard copy...on either a CD ROM or 
USB Flash Drive." In the RFP, Attachment 02-A Envelope 2, it would like one original and 
1 copy of the Price Schedule and Exhibit D. Are you requesting we send in one original 
print, one copy print, AND one electronic version of Envelope 2? Or does one substitute 
out for the other? 

Answer:  The quantity of submittals has been clarified in Amendment 03 with a revised Section X, 
Attachment 02. 

 
17. Question:  In Attachment 02- Envelope 1: Representation Package asks for three References (Letter 

E. In Attachment 02: Envelope 3: Technical Proposal: Section 3 asks for at least three 
references. Can these be the same references or do you want 6 different references in 
total? 

Answer:  The references provided in Envelope 1 may be the same as those included in the 
Technical Proposal information.  Please note that the Technical Proposal requests contact 
information related to individual staff member experience.  The references provided for the 
Technical Proposal must be relevant to the capability and responsiveness of the firm and 
staff related to the scope of services in this RFP. 

 
18. Question:  Can a combined report be submitted for all parcels in project? 

Answer:  No. Separate reports must be submitted for all parcels. 
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19. Question:  Would MWAA provide map for corridor alignment and location and boundary outline of 
parcels? 

Answer:  A map of the corridor depicting the parcel boundaries will be shown to the selected 
Contractor during the contract kick-off meeting for discussion and planning purposes. See 
the revised Statement of Work in Amendment 03 for information on parcel details. 

 
20. Question:  Price Schedule: Project Management and Administration hours. Are these hours fixed or 

do we propose them? 

Answer:  For proposal pricing purposes, the quantities in the Price Schedule are fixed. Please note 
that the Price Schedule has been modified in Amendment 03.   

 
21. Question:  Price Schedule: Are these hours for two years of management and administration? 

 Answer:  The Price Schedule has been modified in Amendment 03.  Management and 
administration is now to be captured in the unit prices for the reports. 

 
22. Question:  Price Schedule: Assessments - are the numbers in estimated quantities column fixed and 

do they represent 15 sites requiring transaction screen, 14 sites Phase 1 and 5 sites 
Phase 2? 

Answer:  For proposal pricing purposes, the quantities in the Price Schedule are fixed and represent 
the quantity of each type of report for pricing purposes. As shown within the Price 
Schedule Notes: “The quantities listed above are for estimating purposes only. The actual 
quantities will be determined upon actual services provided during the term of the contract. 

 
23. Question:  Price Schedule:  Option Period One, Do the estimated quantity column numbers for 

assessment represent the number of new sites requiring transaction screen, Phase 1 and 
Phase 2 respectively? 

Answer:  Yes, the quantities shown are for “new” sites not addressed during the Base Period. 

 

24. Question: Is it possible for an SBE to submit a proposal as a Prime Consultant and be a 
subconsultant on another SBE team? 

Answer: No. 

 

25. Question:  In the Price Schedule document, the unit price for ESAs is described as "Report." Can you 
define that unit term and what it includes?  

Answer:    Environmental Due Diligence documents and its supporting appendices necessary to meet 
the ASTM requirements for both Phase I and Phase II ESAs.  The scope of the task is 
described in the Statement of Work. 

 
26. Question:  Does the "Report" unit cost for Phase II ESA effort need to include projected laboratory, 

subcontractors, field oversight, report preparation costs, etc.? 

Answer: Yes. 
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27. Question:  What firm is the incumbent from the Phase 1 portion of the project? 

Answer: SCS Engineers and BEM completed the ESA work for Phase 1 of the Project. 

 

28. Question:  What was the dollar value for the Phase I portion of the work? 

Answer:  A price comparison for the work to be completed in this scope of work and the ESA work 
that was already completed in Phase 1 of the Project is not available. 

 
29. Question: Is any information available regarding the number of meetings typically necessary to 

obtain VDOT approval of final Phase I and II ESA reports? 

Answer: Supplemental meetings with VDOT are now covered under the Special Technical 
Assistance task, which is an hourly unit rate on the Price Schedule. 

 
30. Question:  MWAA indicates that a QA/QC program will be required for completion of the work and 

that the procedures shall capture the policies, guidelines and processes of the Phase 1 
project. Will the Phase 1 QA/QC documents be provided to the successful bidder, 
preferably in electronic format, for use in preparing the Phase 2 plans?  

Answer: This requirement has been removed from the RFP documents. Please see the revised 
Statement of Work in Amendment 03 for the current ESA requirements.  

 
31. Question: In regard to the timing of the work for staffing purposes, how can we expect the groups of 

ESA packages to be scheduled? Would there be a group issued every few weeks or so, 
and over what total period of time? 

Answer: The number of ESAs and which ESAs are to be completed will vary based on order of 
priority for acquisition based on design development and construction needs. The 
quantities in the Price Schedule reflect the order of magnitude that we anticipate.  As 
shown, with option years, the services are expected to be need for up to six years with 
most of the work in the Base Period.32.  

 
32. Question:  Attachment 02 Section 02 Proposal Submission Requirements (A)(d) notes that Exhibit M, 

SBE Affidavit of Eligibility, should be included in Representation Packages as applicable. 
However, in other sections of the RFP it is noted Exhibit M only needs to be provided by 
the successful offeror See Section IV-2 (C) and Section VIII-6 (D)(1)(b). Would you please 
clarify if you would like the offerors to complete Exhibit M as part of our proposal? 

Answer: Amendment 03 clarifies that only “the apparent successful prime offeror” should fill out 
Exhibit M.  

 
33. Question:  Section III-1 notes that the Price Schedule, Section III should be submitted by electronic 

and hard copy. Attachment 02 Evaluation Criteria - Page 3 notes under Envelope 2 that an 
original and hard copy must be provided of the Price Schedule, Section III and Exhibit D, 
Contract Participation Form. Please confirm the electronic copy of the Price Schedule, 
Section III should also be included in Envelope 2. If so, should an electronic copy of 
Exhibit D, Contract Participation Form also be included on the CD-ROM or USB Flash 
Drive? 

Answer: Only the Pricing Schedule should be submitted in electronic format. 
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34. Question: For the Section III Price Schedule, can Offerors modify the projects roles listed to match 

our own proposed team? If not, would you please clarify the minimum the requirements for 
the role of "Senior Scientist" and Scientist?" 

Answer: The Price Schedule has been modified to make the reports a unit price.  All ESAs must be 
completed by an Environmental Professional. See Amendment 03, Attachment 2 for the 
definition of an “Environmental Professional” as defined in ASTM E1527E standards.   

As stated within Attachment 2, “Offerors must furnish a list of all proposed staff for this 
project and submit their résumé, which should detail specific information that qualifies 
them for this work. Offerors shall submit to the Airports Authority any proposed changes to 
Key Staff for review and approval throughout the duration of the Contract.” 

 
35. Question:  Regarding SBE certifications, which qualifying agencies are acceptable to MWAA for 

purposes of meeting the requirements of Section VIII.04.D.2.b. - SBE Eligibility? 

Answer:  The Airports Authority is the only agency that can qualify/certify a contractor as an SBE.  

   
36. Question:  Are the driller and laboratory that may provide services as part of a Phase II ESA required 

to be SBEs? 

Answer: Yes. 

 
37. Question: On Section VII-3, Item 15 Liability Insurance, there is a requirement that insurance 

companies have a rating of A- VII or higher from the A.M. Best Company. Our firm has this 
rating for the commercial liability insurance. However, for professional liability insurance, 
our carrier, TERRA, has a rating of A V. However, based on its credit adequacy score, 
Terra actually has an imputed rating of A++. Also, Terra is reinsured by Everest 
Reinsurance Company, which is rated A+, Class XV and Beazley, which is rated A, Class 
XV by A.M. Best. We believe that our A rating from Bests, combined with our credit 
adequacy score and the nature of our reinsurance, should satisfy any concern MWAA may 
have regarding Terra as an insurer. Accordingly, we request that an exception be made 
with regard to this requirement. 

Answer: Please supply documentation to confirm the reinsurance provided by Everest and Beazley. 

 
38. Question:   In the general course of daily business, we would typically purchase incidental supplies 

and equipment from vendors such a Staples, Wal-Mart and Home Depot. Please verify it is 
not the intent of this 100% SBE contract to require SBE alternative suppliers for such 
incidental and customary supplies such as paper, hand tools, etc. 

Answer:  The supplies procured by a company that are used in day to day construction activities are 
not required to come from an approved SBE supplier.  Also, incidental supplies like paper, 
are not held to the standard covered in Section VIII-3C(3).  Only items procured directly by 
contract from a firm that is certified as a stocking supplier are considered in this section. 

 
39. Question:  The parcels listed in the Property Acquisition List have been associated with a drawing 

number and station. The MWAA plan holders portal does not appear to have a link to the 
plans or shape files defining these parcels. The parcel numbers also appear not to be tax 
parcel numbers, but rather MWAA's interval numbers. Please provide a link to the 
drawings and parcel shape files for bidding purposes. Please provide metadata for the 
CADD files and/or shape file coordinate system (i.e. VA State Plane North 
NAD88/NAVD88). 
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Answer: These files will not be provided to the Offeror or selected Contractor.  The revised 
Statement of Work in Amendment 03 describes available parcel and drawing information.  

 
40. Question:  The presentation mentions that title work had been completed for all VA parcels and that 

the title searches would need to be updated. Please provide a list of parcels for which title 
work has been completed. Please provide MWAA's requirements for updates. Please 
provide a list of parcels for which title work must be completed and verify whether this 
work should be included in the consultant's scope and cost proposal. For the purpose of 
estimating reproduction expense, please clarify the type and quantity of work products 
required (i.e. 6 hard copies of each report, 1 diskette only, etc.) 

Answer:  Title Reports are not part of the scope of services for this contract.  They will be provided 
by the Airports Authority. The revised Statement of Work in Amendment 03 identifies the 
number of copies of Environmental Due Diligence Reports to be submitted for each parcel.  

 
41. Question:  The SBA Table of Small Business Size Standards Matched to NAICS Codes indicates 

identifies 237990 as Other Heavy and Civil Engineering Construction with the size 
standard of $33.5M. Please clarify the origin of the $22.41M size standard. Can our team 
include a subcontractor that meets the $33.5M size standard but not the $22.41M 
standard? 

Answer:  Although the U.S. SBA Table of Small Business Standards does indeed give $33.5 million 
as the size standard for the NAICS code that you ask about, we are using the DBE 
standard of $22.4 million as the maximum size for a small business.   This requirement is 
outlined in Exhibit C of the RFP.    

 
42. Question:  Will the contract be Firm Fixed Price? 

Answer: As noted within Section V – Solicitation Provisions of Amendment 03, the contract will be a 
fixed unit price contract.44.  

 
43. Question:  Will MWAA award a contract for all items listed in the Price Schedule for the Base Period? 

Or will MWAA issue task orders (or releases) for separate items in the Price Schedule? 

Answer: Work will be awarded in accordance with Section 3, Pricing Schedule, not on an individual 
task basis. 

 
43. Question:  Please clarify the origin of the $22.41M size standard. Can our team include a 

subcontractor that meets the $33.5M size standard but not the $22.41M standard? 

Answer: No. 

 
44. Question:   On the Price Proposal, are the hourly prices loaded or unloaded? 

Answer:  The hourly prices are at a loaded rate. 

 
45. Question:  According to SOW Attachment 01 Page 1, you bring up the Preliminary Engineering Plans 

that include the "Property Identification Plans that identify the acquisitions needed." Will 
these be available to us to view? 

Answer: The revised Statement of Work in Amendment 03 describes the information available for 
review. 


